
SOUTH WEBER CITY
CITY COUNCIL MEETING

DATE OF MEETING: 17 October 2017

PRESENT: MAYOR:

TIME COMMENCED: 5:01p.m.

Tammy Long

COUNCILMEMBERS: Scoff Casas
Kent Hyer (arrived 5202 p.m.)
Merv Taylor
Jo Sjoblom
Wayne Winsor (excused)

CITY ENGINEER: Brandon Jones

CITY ATTORNEY: Doug Ahlstrom

CITY RECORDER: Mark McRae (excused)

CITY MANAGER: Tom Smith

Transcriber: Minutes transcribed by Michelle Clark

ATTENDEES: Martin Jensen, Bruce Williams, and Tim Grubb.

Mayor Long called the meeting to order and welcomed those in affendance.

AGENDA: Council Member Taylor moved to approve the agenda as written. Council
Member Sjoblom seconded the motion. Tom called for the vote. Council Members Casaso

Sjoblom, and Taylor voted yes. The motion carried.

CONFLICT OF INTEREST: None

Council Member Hyer arrived at 5:02 p.m.

CONSENT AGENDA:
o RES 17-39 Appoint General Election Poll Workers

Resolution l7-39 states the followingbe appointed as poll workers: Kim Egginton, Deborah
Worthen , Tracy Goertzen, and Katherine Adamson.

Council Member Sjoblom moved to approve the consent agenda as written. Council
Member Taylor seconded the motion. Tom called for the vote. Council Members Casas,
Sjoblom, Hyer, and Taylor voted yes. The motion carried.



South Weber City Council Meeting 17 October 2017 Page 2 of 9

RESOLUTION 17-38 Consideration for Adoption of a Resolution of the City Council of
South Weber City, Utah authorizing the Issuance and Sale of not more than $3,500,000
Aggregate Principal Amount of Water Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2017 and Related
Matters: Tom Smith, City Manager, said Bruce Williams is here to discuss the bond prosess.
Bruce Williams, of Zions Public Finance, said a couple of weeks ago he made a presentation
with the Council. He reviewed (Refunding Bond Options):

Refundin Bond O tions
Option fl

_8q444!qal lryirys

Optioo fr2

Slrorten Bond Term

PAR Amount of Bonds

Gross Savings

Average Annual Savings

Net Present Value Savings (Today's Dollars)

$ 3,000,000 s 3,000,000

s210,000 to s345,000 s325,000 to s522,000

s9,150 to s15,000 52,200 to 52,300

5159,000 to 5255,000 St9c,000 to 5294,000

7.19% to 10.91%

2.92% to 3.25%

3.26% to 3.5996

2038 to 2039

Net NF/ Benefit (Savings as a ?6 of Refunded Principal| 5.8916 to 9.46%

True lnterest Cost nate (TtC) 3.03% to 3.33%

All lnclusive Cost Rate (AlCl 3.3596 to 3.52%

Final Payment Date 2040

Bond Term (Years) 23 21to 22

He anticipates the true interest cost rate (TIC) between 2.92% and 3 .25%. Council Member
Casas asked who approached who concerning the item. Tom said Zions Bank approached the
City. Council Member Casas said the City could have doubled their opportunity a yeff ago.
Bruce said rates are still low. He doesn't anticipate rates going lower. Bruce said tonight the
Council is looking at whether or not to approve a parameters resolution. He discussed the
schedule and said by the middle of the December they will probably close. Council Member
Taylor asked what the City's bond rate is. Bruce said the City currently has an "A" rating.
Bruce reviewed Resolution 17-38 Section I which is as follows:

Section 1. For the purpose of (a) refunding the Refunded Bonds, (b) funding a deposit to a debt service reserve fund,
if necessary, and (c) paying costs of issuance of the Series 2017 Bonds, the Issuer hereby authorizes the issuance of
the Series 2017 Bonds which shall be designated "South Weber City, Utah Water Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series
2017" (to be issued from time to time as one or more series and with such other series or title designation(s) as may
be determined by the Issuer) in the aggregate principal amount of not to exceed $3,500,000. The Series 2Ol7 Bonds
shall mature in not more than twenty-four (24) years from their date or dates, shall be sold at a price not less than
ninety eight percent (98%) of the total principal amount thereof, shall bear interest at a rate or rates of not to exceed

ACTIVE AGENDA:



17 October 2017 Page 3 of 9

five percent (5.00%) per annum, as shall be approved by the Designated Officers, all within the Parameters set forth
herein.

Council Member Casas voiced his concerns about Zions Bank not coming to the City last year to
do this ayear ago. He said the Citymissed out on $500,000 because this wasn't done last year.
Bruce agrees there was a period of approximately three months this could have happened.
Council Member Hyer asked about the fees associated with this. Bruce said the fees

underwriters discount is%% and in addition he anticipates cost of issuance of $80,000. Council
Member Hyer is concerned about the maximum of $3,500,000. Council Member Casas said he
isn't happy with how the resolution is written. Council Member Casas said Zions Banks bill
wasn't part of the bill and he has a problem with that. He doesn't feel that wasn't fair to present

a presentation without a cost. Council Member Hyer asked for a breakdown of costs. Bruce said
he can get a breakdown of fees. Doug Ahlstrom, City Attorney, said he reviewed the resolution
and felt it sets the parameters and limits and is the way this business works. He doesn't see any
red flags in it. He said it isn't unusual for them to disclose the fees. Tom said Mr. Williams did
tell him approximately what the fees would cost, but didn't go into it. Martin Jensen said there is
nobody better in this business than Zions Bank. He recently closed a bond with them for Salt
Lake County.

Council Member Casas moved to approve RESOLUTION 17-38 Consideration for
Adoption of a Resolution of the City Council of South Weber City, Utah authorizing the
Issuance and Sale of not more than $2,9001000 Aggregate Principal Amount of Water
Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2017 and Related Matters for Option#2. Council
Member Hyer seconded the motion.

Further discussion on the motion took place. The Council reviewed the cost of the bond and the
fees. Doug Ahlstrom, City Attorney, said he has complete trust in Zions Public Finance. He
said the fees are what they are. He would trust their opinion.

Tom called for the vote. Council Members Casas, Hyer, Sjoblom, and Taylor voted yes.
The motion carried.

Parks and Recreation Needs Assessment - Nlartin Jensen: Council Member Casas said the
last survey was conducted in 2009. He discussed the importance of doing something with the
data after it is collected. Martin Jensen said he has lived in South Weber City for twelve years.

He works for Salt Lake County Parks and Recreation. He would like to offer assistance in trying
to help the City deal with Parks and Recreation issues. He feels the City can prepare themselves
better. He feels a needs assessment survey would be helpful. He said he conducts a needs
assessment every five years and a master plan every ten years. He partners with Utah State
University. He encouraged the City to conduct a needs assessment survey. He is happy to help
and give is advice. He feels it will help make the Council's jobs easier. He said it allows the
Council to hear the voices of the community. Tom asked if the survey includes ways citizens
would want these things to be financed. Council Member Sjoblom said the survey does ask how
thgy believe the fees required to run the activitylprogram should be paid. Martin discussed the
Bonneville Shoreline Trail. He said this trail is heavily used. He said people in South Weber
would love this trail to continue north to the Weber River. He feels the City should be looking at
this and investigating grants. The Council thanked Martin for his time. He suggested having a
mailing company mail out the survey to single family homes. He said part of USU extension,

South Weber City Council Meeting



South Weber City Council Meeting 17 October 2017 Page 4 of 9

they put together the data. Martin suggested randomly sending the survey out. He suggested
using the database called National Recreation Parks Association Prograis. He said parks are

what make are communities better. He said the potential trails for the City gets him excited. He
would be happy to help in any way he can. He thanked the Council and Mayor for what they do.

The Council discussed sending a survey to every resident. It was decided that Tom will put
together a draft, and meet with the Parks Committee.

Council Member Sjoblom moved to approve a USU Parks and Recreation Needs
Assessment Survey not to exceed $3,000. Council Member Casas seconded the motion.
Tom called for the vote. Council Members Casas, Hyer, Sjoblom, and Taylor voted yes.
The motion carried.

Old Fort Road Property Acquisition
Tom Smith, City Manager, said he met with Brandon Jones, City Engineer, to discuss this.
Brandon said the driving force is that development, both existing and potential, continues to be
active along and at the end of the existing Old Fort Road (6650 South, East of 475 East). In order
to meet with the City's long term goals, as it relates to this road and related economic
development, the City Staff feel it is best to be proactive and seek partnering opportunities as

much as possible in order to maximize the use of tax payer dollars. Therefore, City Staff
compiled the following list of tasks to be accomplished and their associated status in order to get
feedback and direction on next steps.

Design Standards
COMPLETED - Oripndly adoptod by thc City Courcil
on 12/8/2015. Rwi€lr,€d ald ren*ad d.k ifi CCIPC
mcetine t/!5n017.

Adopt Standard Sroet
Cross Secti,on

I

2 Adopt 475 F-ast COMPLETED - Adopted Opion 2 {S*'eping Tee nrth
intcrs(rtron oonfigrnation frc.c nght) al 8ll5n0l7 joint nreering with CC arrd PC.

Right-of-Way {Propcrty} Acqui sition
3 Stcphcar Propcn;*' ( I3- Mr. Stcphcrrs wils origlnally willing to donatc the propcrtv

0:34127 & 13.018{052} ntlff for t}r ROW; Cuncntly'irquiring to scc if Mr.

- along 6650 South, noflh Stcphcm *lll still homr that ofler.
si& & 475 Frst, east sidc
1.276 Acres
Archulctr Propcrty { l3-
0l8fll4l - porticr along
norttleast coflrer of parccl

0.059 Acta

Forrrrly ou,nod by l-ambc'rsons. ei$nally rcceirud ur
*A&ninistr*ive Conryerusation Estfunde. (ACE) cseimae
for punctuse of property al S7,Um. This estimae d to
be rpdatod to current valu.r

{

StatusItern Description



South Weber City Council Meeting 17 October 2017 Page 5 of 9

SpruHing Propcrt!' ( I 3-
0184071)-dong6650
South, south side
0.191 Acrcs

Basod on l.ambcrscn ACE, would be yrlued at appnox.

$2e700.
5

6 Rocky Mmntrh Powcr
Propcrty (13{lt,-()053}-
olong 6650 Souttt, nofilt
side
Ol33 Acrcs

Originaily negciated donded property in cxchange for
improvenrnts consfructd. Ned to rerrw sgr*tncnt,
iflwhen nroving fomnad.

nLB South lYc$cr trad
L LC Propcny*' ( R iwrside
Place) - along 6650
South, south sidc
0.!03 Actus

\Vill be automatically dedicatd srheo thc plat fu
Rirrcrsidc Place Phasc 4 is rccordd, or could be dedicated
cs a sepamtc documesrt sootm, if n*d€d.

1

CooL Propcrty (13.275-
0005) - extensim of 6650
South, ffist erd

Nd part of the origiml dnfl de|'clopment agreuneil. lff
bc arromatically Hicated whcn ttre plat fn thrt
doelopnrent is reordod or muld bc dodicatod u a

t

docunrnt if rroded.

Estimatcd Costs and Participation
I Bnrcc Stepbens Originslly agreod to donse 3170,m0 tryrpalds @ostnstion

ccts. Currently inquiring to soc if Mr. Steptus will sult
brnr tha offer.

l0 M-B S'urlh lVebcr tgxl
LLC

Originally agrcod to psy 3285,(m touards their
proportironate iture of tttc oo{rfiirction ccti" Currcntly
have vcrhrlly rgred to pry half dro rtrwt sfotth almg the
fronage of Rivasirle Plrcc, eslirnated by r&A d tpror.
3120,fiI0.

I t Coo& Prropcrt!. Not part of ttre original draf, &ehprnau assertfi[.
Have had initial disrssiom regerdrng payrnt for cotire
road but thc City upuld constnrct it

12 Snrth Weber City

tlesign ard Constnrction
tJ Dcsrgn Drau"ings

ToEl Proiect Cos originally rstirnatod d S1,166122.
With puticipatioq ilrc City's portioil wcs $71 I I22,
- fhle to scnre of ttre storrn drain being irlstslloq hil hi$tcr
curstnrtisr co6tsr tbe ctnrea cst estirnate b approx.
$1,100,m0. Wi$ partictpation rnerliottod Sorry, tlte
City's portiffr rotrH be 5t10,fi)0"

Thc original pqiect was designod to lhurt E57r conplcte.
With additional changcs al thc 475 Erst intersectkm ard
potentially ding tlre Cook popcty, wttat has dr@
boen d€signed nould rtArescnt abq* 65t/r conpletc.



South Weber City Council Meeting 17 October 2017 Page 6 of 9

14 Projecl ConsEuction lf thc Cook profrty could bc included,lhen the City
would design and construct the entirc rod. The road
cmncting to Old Fort Road at th€ Cook propcrty wqrld
pmvide for a thrustreet connoction hrk to Canyon
Meadows Drivq thrs avoiding the need for a turnarormd.

Outside Potential Funding Sources
This ycar (ml ?) wrs the first par tlut Davis Crunty rnad€
arrailable Pnop I monies fr cligible projcu. J&A
submittd r Noticc of Intent for the City, but thc
application wr not selectcd This may be a potential
soucc of furding in rpcoming )cars.

t5 Davis Comry Prop I
Grant (Local)

If the City muld gpt Old Fort Rcrd furctionally classifiod
as a collector pnor to it actually being corstnrctod th€n il
wqrld bocome eligible for this tlpe of firndinp Howwcr,
llderal frnding roquires thc conpletisr of an
environnrntal &unent (pard fs *'ith local rnney) and
other ruquirenrnts ttr* rre not rcquired with lcal fudins.

l6 \ffFRC STP Funding
(Federal)

Council Member Casas recommended pursuing the Archuleta property (13-018-0014). Council
Member Hyer suggested asking the Archuletas for a donation of their property first. Brandon
pointed out the road connecting to Old Fort Road at the Cook property would provide for a thru-
street connection back to Canyon Meadows Drive, thus avoiding the need for a furnaround.
Council Member Casas asked what prompted this now. Brandon said the Cook development.
Tom would like to know what the Council's feelings are. Council Member Casas feels the small
acquisitions are doable. He feels the road needs to go thru. Tim Grubb said Riverside Place is
waiting to see what the City decides because that developer is ready to patch that portion of the
road. Council Member Casas suggested doing curb, gutter, etc. on the south side of the road.
Brandon said it can be done. Council Member Casas suggested installing2} ft. of asphalt as

well. He feels that makes more sense fiscally. Brandon said it can be done. He would suggest a

full width road past 475 intersection. The Council discussed approaching Mr. Stephens. Council
Member Hyer suggested in the future being careful about putting out numbers for property
purchase.

Council Member Sjoblom moved to approve the Old Fort Road property acquisition with
property owners and a design for the south half of the road to Riverside Place at 475 East
intersection. Council Member Casas seconded the motion. Tom called for the vote.
Council Members Casas, llyer, Sjoblom, Taylor voted yes. The motion carried.

Award Transportation Capital Facilities Plan and Impact Fee Facilities Plan consultant
services agreement: Tom Smith, City Manager, said on Friday, October 6,2017 proposals were
received in response to the 2017 Transportation CFP and IFFP RFP (Request for Proposals). An
advertisement for the RFP was published in the Standard Examiner (2 different times), and
posted on SciQuest. The RFP was available for free at the City Office (hard copy) or on the
Jones & Associates website, jonescivil.com (electronic copy). Twelve companies downloaded
the RFP. Two Proposals were received. The two firms that responded were Horrocks Engineers
and Hales Engineering.

The Evaluation Criteria was clearly stated in the RFP. A complete review and evaluation of both
proposals was performed. Both firms scored the same on qualifications (experience and



South Weber City Council Meeting 17 October 2017 Page 7 of 9

references) as well as on time schedule. Both firms proposed to have the work completed in 6
months. The remaining criterion was The Scope of Work/Approach and Fee. In evaluatingboth
firms on these items, both scored very well. However, in the end, Horrocks Engineers scored

better than Hales Engineering for the following reasons:

o Horrocks' office is very close in proximity to South Weber (thus being able to be more
responsive and maximum time spent on the project, rather than on travel)
o Horrocks approach included some additional thoughts that added to the overall value of the

CFP and IFFP.

Therefore, the City Staff recommends that the contract be awarded to Horrocks Engineers in the

amount, not to exceed $29,897.22.

Council Member Casas moved to award the Transportation Capital Facilities Plan and
Impact Fee Facilities Plan consultant services agreement to Horrocks Engineers in the
amount not to exceed $29.897.22. Council Member Hyer seconded the motion. Tom called
for the vote. Council Members Casas, Hyer, Sjoblom, and Taylor voted yes. The motion
carried.

Council Member Hyer discussed resident's concerns with how the Transportation Utility Fund is
being used. He wants to make sure those funds are used appropriately.

Award Park & Ride Snow Removal Service Contract
Tom Smith, City Manager, said the bid went out for two weeks and the City received one bid
from Green Castle. The bid is $ 170 cost per push and $ 100 per ton of de-ice material.
Council Member Taylor moved to award the park & ride snow removal service contract to
Green Castle for an extension of five years. Council Member Hyer seconded the motion.
Tom called for the vote. Council Members Casaso Hyer, Sjoblom, and Taylor voted yes.

The motion carried.

Award Street Striping quote
Tom Smith, City Manager, said the budget has allocated $4,000 for street striping. The City
received one bid by phone call from American Pavement Markin g, LLC for $7,5 15.25. He said
the bid includes some additions which include signage and striping at Central Park. Council
Member Hyer suggested adding more road to the project if that would get a company to come in
for a $ 1,000 more. Council Member Casas feels the public safety roads should be done first.

Council Member Casas moved to direct staff to negotiate striping for safety for up to
$41000. Council Member Sjoblom seconded the motion. Tom called for the vote. Council
Members Casas, Hyer, Sjoblom, and Taylor voted yes. The motion carried.

REPORTS:

Mayor Long: She attended the 50 year celebration of the South Weber Fire Department. She
also attended the Fire Prevention Night yesterday. She attended the Mosquito Abatement
Meeting. West Nile Virus pools are high in Davis County. She attended the Central Weber

PUBLIC COMMENTS: (None)



South Weber City Council Meeting

Sewer Meeting passed a60/o increase at $1.10 per resident. Tom said this will be passed along to
the residents.

Council Member Hyer: He said Tom met with the Country Fairs Day Committee. They
reviewed how the City supported the celebration. He hasn't seen a full report. He understands
Paul is still waiting for all the receipts to be turned in. He said the Dust Committee met and

discussed a dust collecting system for $250 that people can order and put in their yard. He
suggested working with the gravel pit companies to see if they can help fund these units. He said
most residents don't trust the gravel pits information. He suggested contacting Parsons to see if
they will help street sweeping dust ridden areas. He said the citizen's biggest concern is what is
in that dust and is it harmful for their children.

Council Member Sjoblom: She reported the digital sign structure will be completed by Carl
Bastian weather permitting this year, if not he will have to do it in the spring. She attended the

Fire Department Celebration and Fire Prevention Night.

Council Member Casas: He asked if anyone has watered the trees at Central Park. He said for
the next month they will need some extra water. The Council discussed the maples trees along
2700 East. Council Member Casas said he thinks the maples on the north end might need more
water.

City Manager: He attended a Legislative Policy Meeting on Monday. He suggested the

Council read the information in his memo. He is working with Council Member Sjoblom and

Hyer to meet with Senator Millner and Representative Miles. He will not be in attendance for
next week's Council meeting. He reported there is an issue with the 2003 snow plow. He said
the procurement policy is $5,000.

Planning Commission Liaison: He said the Planning Commission approved the Public Works
Standards and the Impact Fees. A special meeting will be held in November to discuss the
proposed twin home development.

Council Member Taylor moved to direct the City staff to direct the Planning Commission
review conditional uses in all zones. Council Member Casas seconded. Tom called for the
vote. Council Members Casas, Hyer, Sjoblom, and Taylor voted yes.

City Attorney: Doug Ahlstrom will be reviewing the Staker Parson Development agreement.
He will put together a report for Tom to distribute to the Council.

ADJOURNED: Council Member Hyer moved to adjourn the meeting at 8:53 p.m. Council
Member Sjoblom seconded. Tom called for the vote. Council Members Casas, Hyer,
Sjoblom, and Taylor voted yes. The motion carried.

APPROVE
Mayor: T

Date ll-2 l-10 t7

17 October 2017 Page 8 of 9



South Weber City Council Meeting

Attest: City

17 October 2017 Page 9 of 9

Cai

Mark McRae


